
 1

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
February 12, 2014 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the January 22, 2014 Board Meeting. 
b. Request of Pedro Martinez for Leak Relief. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Resolution approving a grant from California Department of Boating and 

Waterways for a new patrol boat. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
 



 2

7. Recommend approval of Ordinance No. 14-01, Establishing Rules and 
Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Ordinance 

 
8. Recommend approval and setting of Reserves. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion setting Reserves 
 
9. Recommend acknowledgment and support of the General Manager’s 

recommendation for a salary adjustment and revision to the job 
description to the Public Affairs/Resource Manager position.  

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
Recess Casitas Board Meeting 
 
10. Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation Meeting 
 

a. Recommend approval of application for recognition of exemption and 
approval of power of attorney. 
 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
  

Reconvene Casitas Board Meeting 
 
11. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Area Report for December, 2013. 
b. CSDA Webinar: Understanding Board Member & District Liability 

Issues. 
c. Finance Committee Minutes. 
d. Preliminary FY 2014-2015 Budget Schedule. 
e. Water Resources Minutes. 
f. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
g. Executive Committee Minutes. 
h. Water Consumption Report. 
i. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
j. Investment Report. 

 
12. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 

 
 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
January 22, 2014 

 
 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held January 22, 2014 at Casitas' 
Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Hicks, Bergen, Kaiser, Baggerly and 
Word were present. Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, 
Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  There were 
six staff members and eight members of the public in attendance.  President 
Hicks led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

William Pidduck with Finch Farms expressed concerned and thought it 
may be time to declare drought measures.  Individual operators should be 
responsible for their own cutbacks and Ag should not be lumped in as a whole.   
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum reported we are delivering 70 acre feet per day and are 
seeing some transition to our system.  He then informed the Board that Safety 
Officer, Mark Passamani has resigned and accepted a position with Castaic.  Mr. 
Wickstrum and the Board thanked Mr. Passamani for his efforts in developing the 
current safety program.  Mr. Passamani also expressed his appreciation for the 
opportunity he had at Casitas. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Baggerly asked about the noise issue.  Mr. Cole explained that 
there was an installation but it did not achieve the desired results so there is an 
additional custom fabrication that is being done which should be more effective. 
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the January 8, 2014 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Consolidated 

Electrical Distributors in the not to exceed amount of $205,977.36 
for the purchase of electrical motor control centers and associated 
electrical equipment for the Upper Ojai 3M Pump Plant electrical 
upgrade project. 

c. Resolution awarding a contract to J & H Engineering General 
Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $165,836.00 for Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area Roads Maintenance, Specification 13-368. 

 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by 
Director Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 



 2

 Resolution is numbered 14-03. 
  
5. Bills        APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser, the bills 

were approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Recommend authorization of letter to Bureau of Reclamation to proceed 

with the finalization of the Safety of Dams Contract No. 8-07-20-W1531. 
         APPROVED 
   
 Mr. Wickstrum reported that in a meeting with the Bureau of Reclamation 
he heard what he has been waiting to hear for 13 years and that is that the 
concern of superficial movement on rock on the dam is not considered a safety 
factor and that someone from the Bureau would not come back to Casitas at a 
later date and require the District to restore it at the District’s expense.  This 
occurred during construction and the Bureau recognizes that if it became a safety 
issue the Bureau would use the Safety of Dams provisions.  We have negotiated 
the SOD Contract for three years and are now ready to send notice to the Bureau 
of Reclamation to move forward with the contract.   
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote:  
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Quagga Mussel Update and Discussion. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained that the ad hoc committee had met and the 
decision was made to change the quarantine period to 35 days which is easier 
for staff to manage.  If someone fails on the first inspection, they are now given a 
week until they can retest and if they pass they are on the 35 day quarantine.  

 
Director Baggerly asked to set another ad hoc meeting for Thursday, the 

30th at 9:00. 
 

Mary Kanatzar representing United Water Conservation District informed 
the board that their district is taking this very seriously and recognizes it is a 
concern for our neighbors.  Divers were out this weekend and they are compiling 
their findings for us.  We are working as fast as we can and are working with the 
other agencies including Fish & Wildlife and they are advising us.  There is lots of 
research and lots of reading and contacting specialists in this area and looking at 
both control measures and to find the most recent reports to inform ourselves 



 3

and looking towards consultants as to the picture of what we are dealing with.  
We appreciate your patience with us. 
 

Director Kaiser asked if there is conflict regarding the releases that FERC 
and NMFS is requiring.  Ms. Kanatzar explained that FERC and NMFS are not 
inclined to release us from this requirement.  Mr. Wickstrum thanked United for 
communicating with us. 
 
8. Discussion on notifications from the USDA and Governor Brown Declaring 

Drought. 
 

  Mr. Wickstrum reported it has been a very active first month of 2014 with 
quagga mussels and the drought declaration.  It is important that we reflect 
where we are. We know we are in a dry period.  Water supplies are being 
demanded upon and are not being replenished.  The USDA issued a declaration 
with loan assistance for farmers and the Governor proclaimed the state to be in 
drought.  Mr. Wickstrum provided a memorandum providing information on where 
we have been, where we are at presently and improvements since 1990.  
Citizens and ranchers heard the water conservation message and are doing a 
good job and are better than where we were at in 1988 and 1990.  We have 
discussed increasing our public outreach and we are assuming that if we do not 
get substantial rain the lake will be at 50% by September or October. 
 

Director Baggerly suggested declaring level 2 alerts and to prioritize a list 
of things people and resale customers can do.  Director Baggerly also asked 
Counsel to provide a report on the information that was provided in the letter from 
Jean Getchell. 
 
9. Information Items: 
 

a. Letter from USDA to Governor Brown regarding counties 
designated as natural disaster areas due to recent drought. 

b. Letter from Jean Getchell regarding Body Contact at Lake Casitas. 
c. Executive Committee Minutes. 
d. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
President Hicks moved the meeting was moved to closed session at 3:32 

p.m. 
 
10. Closed Session 
 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel -- Existing Litigation (Subdivision (a) of 
Section 54956.9, Government Code).  Name of Case:  Golden State 
Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water District.  Case Number: 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA. 

 
President Hicks moved the meeting out of closed session at 3:45 p.m. with 

Mr. Mathews stating the Board consulted with general and special counsel on the 
status of the case and there was no action taken. 



 4

 
11. Adjournment  
 
 President Hicks adjourned the regular meeting at 3:46 p.m. 
 
 
The Special Meeting was called to order at 3:46 p.m.   
 

1. Public Comment 
 
None 

 
2. Recommend approval of a letter to John Laird, Secretary or Resources, 

California Natural Resources Agency regarding Quagga Mussels. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum explained a concern on the FERC licensing requirements 
to release water contaminated with veligers and an attempt to get the agencies to 
work together to assist United.  Director Baggerly added it is designed to protect 
the lake as the distance between the Santa Clara and Ventura estuary is a blue 
herons flight away.   The board discussed the letter and expressed concerns with 
asking for a treatment plant and that the letter had not been discussed with 
United.   
 

Mary Kanatzar, Administrative Services Manager of United Water 
Conservation District asked that the board delay this action.  United did not know 
about this letter until today.  We disagree with everything in this letter.  If releases 
are stopped if would be devastating to United.  The river is dry.  Our 7 cfs does 
not make it down past Piru.  Water in Santa Clara River is groundwater.  No 
water out of Lake Piru goes beyond Piru.  There won’t be any in the foreseeable 
future and there will be no fall release this year.  Veligers reproduce in May and 
June. It is the belief that there are no veligers, they are juveniles and adults.  We 
are asking for time as there are things in here that are not factual.  We would like 
to work with you. We do not believe they will live through the velocity of the 
release in the dam and the estuary is part salt part fresh. This letter is 
devastating to United.  There are no 100% guarantees. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Baggerly and 
passed by the following roll call vote, the letter was approved with modifications 
removing references to water treatment facility and 100% effective and that the 
letter reference the code.  Additionally it was moved that the General Manager 
speak with Mike Solomon prior to sending the letter. 
 

AYES: Directors: Word, Baggerly, Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

President Hicks adjourned the special meeting at 4:21 p.m. 
 
 
 



 5

     ________________________ 
     Pete Kaiser, Secretary 
     Board of Directors 



















































 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 Interdepartmental Memo 
 
 
DATE:  February 4, 2014  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Amend the Rules and Regulations Ordinance 10-01 for the  
  Lake Casitas Recreation Area   
   
 
 

 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt amending Ordinance 10-01 5.2 Boating Regulation 5.2.2.1 to 
update and clarify Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s boating regulations and procedures that are taken to 
protect Lake Casitas from invasive species.    
 
Background: 
On April 8, 2008 Casitas Board of Directors of adopted a resolution that created the Vessel Restriction 
Program and the Vessel Quarantine, Re-Entry, Temporary Storage and Tamper-Proof Tag Programs to 
protect Lake Casitas from Quagga and Zebra mussel infections. In response to the news of December 
20, 2013 that Ventura County’s Lake Piru testing positive for Quagga mussels, the Board of Directors 
appointed a Quagga Mussel Ad Hoc committee to review Casitas’ policies, procedures and protocol 
regarding protecting Lake Casitas from invasive species at their January 8, 2014 meeting.    
 
Analysis: 
At the January 30, 2014 meeting of the Quagga Mussel Ad Hoc Committee, the Committee 
recommended the Board update the 10-01 Ordinance of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area to clarify 
Casitas’ boating restrictions and inspection process. Attached is a draft of a 14-01 Ordinance 
amending the 5.2 Boating Restrictions, 5.2.2.1.  
 
The Ad Hoc committee also reviewed and recommended updates to the policies and procedures. The 
revised policy for boat inspections to prevent invasive species contamination draft is attached. 

 



 

 
 

 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
  

DRAFT 
            
 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR 

 THE PUBLIC USE OF THE LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Ordinance, unless the context clearly requires a different meaning, the 
following words have the following meanings: 
 
 1.1 "Casitas" (also herein referred to as “District”) means the Casitas Municipal Water District. 
 
 1.2 "Board" means the Board of Directors of Casitas. 
 
 1.3 "Park" means Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 
 1.4 "Lake Casitas" means the lake created by Casitas Dam. 
 
 1.5 "Lake Casitas Recreation Area" (also herein referred to as “Recreation Area”) means the 
portion of Casitas Reservoir right-of-way used or planned for use for recreational purposes. 
 

1.6 "General Manager" means the General Manager of Casitas. 
 
 1.7 “Park Services Manager” means the Park Services Manager or the person acting in that capacity 
of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 

1.8 Park Services Officer means a specific employee of Casitas at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
as designated by the General Manager. 
 
1.9 “Casitas Personnel” means any full, part time or volunteer staff of the Lake Casitas Recreation 

Area. 
 
 1.10 "Department" means the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 
 1.11 "Lake" means the Lake Casitas and other lakes or ponds in the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 
 1.12 "Stream" means any watercourse within the Lake Casitas watershed whose waters eventually 

Formatted: Font: 26 pt



 

 
 

 2 

flow into Lake Casitas. 
  
 1.13 "Aquaplane" means any plank, surfboard, water ski, or other device used for transporting, 
conveying, or carrying a person who is towed or pulled by any vessel by means of a rope, chain, cable, wire, or 
other connection. 
 
 1.14 "Horse" means any member of the equine family. 
 

1.15 "Animal" means any one of the lower animals as distinguished from man except fish bait or 
birds other than poultry. 
 

1.16 “Trail” means any roadway or footpath capable of being used by a vehicle or pedestrian. 
 
 1.17 “Vehicle” includes any mechanically propelled device including, but not limited to, cycles and 
motor driven scooters, and/or as defined in the applicable section(s) of the California Motor Vehicle Code. 

 
2. GENERAL 
 
 2.1 Powers granted to the Department or its personnel under this Ordinance shall be construed to be 
powers delegated by the Board to the General Manager and redelegated by him to the Park Services Manager 
for the purpose of management control, and redelegated by the Park Services Manager to Casitas Personnel, as 
deemed appropriate. 
 
  2.1.1 Park Services Officers are empowered to enforce within the Park all of the provisions of 

this Ordinance and any amendment or amendments thereto, and the California 
Administrative Code Title 14, relating to Fish and Game regulations, and the California 
State Boating Law.  Such Park Services Officers are normally not authorized to enforce 
such laws, Ordinances or regulations outside the Park. 

 
 2.2 The provisions of Section 71660 of the California Water Code make it a misdemeanor to violate 
any of the regulations adopted by this Ordinance relating to vehicle or vessel speed limits, defacement of 
Casitas' property, the use, possession or discharge of firearms, weapons or fireworks, the creation of fire 
hazards, being under the influence of intoxicating beverages or dangerous drugs, or remaining on, or reentering 
Casitas' premises after authorized Casitas Personnel have specifically withdrawn consent for a person to utilize 
Casitas' facilities.  It is an infraction to violate any other regulations of Casitas adopted pursuant to this section. 
 The following procedures shall be subject to citation issuance within the Park, by Casitas Personnel as 
authorized by the General Manager, of persons suspected of the violation of regulations adopted by this 
Ordinance. 
 
  2.2.1 When any person is issued a citation, the person issuing the citation shall prepare, in 

triplicate, a written Notice of Violation, containing the name and address of the person 
violating the Ordinance, the offense charged, and the fine as approved by the Board of 
Directors for such offence. 

                                     
  2.2.2 The fine specified in the Notice of Violation must be paid to the District within thirty 

(30) days of issuance.   
 



 

 
 

 3 

 2.3 The Department is authorized to revoke any Park permit and to expel any person from the Park 
for violation of any applicable law, rule, or regulation. 
 
  2.3.1 The Department shall have the authority to cause to be towed, removed or disposed of 

any property in the Park at the owner’s expense when it has been left without written 
authorization of the Department, becomes a navigational or safety hazard on a trail or 
waterway, has or may potentially introduce pollution into the Lake or when the permit 
of the person(s) leaving the property has expired or has been revoked for violation of 
any applicable law. 

 
  2.3.2 To refuse to present upon request a valid identification document with proof of age. 
 
 2.4 The General Manager is authorized to direct the visiting public in its use of the Park, 
according to statutes, Ordinances, rules, and regulations applicable to the Park.  In the event of fire or other 
emergency or to expedite vehicle or boating traffic, to expedite the launching or removal of vessels, to 
insure the safety of persons in the Park, to insure against pollution of the Lake or to protect property and 
facilities in the Park, the General Manager may direct the public as conditions may require notwithstanding 
other provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
  2.4.1 The General Manager may make variances to this Ordinance as approved by the Board 

of Directors.  The variances will apply only for the time specified.  The variances will 
be on file in the Recreation Area while they are in effect 

 
 2.5 It is unlawful to willfully fail or refuse to comply with any lawful order, signal, or direction of 
any Park Services Officer or to refuse to submit to any lawful inspection under this Ordinance. 
 
3. PUBLIC USE FEES 
                                    
 3.1 Public use fees shall be established by Ordinance of the Board and may be revised from time to 
time by Ordinance of the Board, provided that nothing contained herein shall be construed to permit the 
collection of a fee from any pedestrian for entering the Park for day use.  Public access to the Recreation Area 
is through the main gate only unless a special use permit is granted by the General Manager and is on file at the 
Recreation Area. 

 
 3.2 Public use fees shall be due and payable upon entering the park.  They shall be considered 
earned upon receipt and shall not be subject to refund by Casitas.  Receipts and fees are not transferable.  It 
shall be unlawful to be in or to enter the Park without paying all fees that may be applicable under the public 
fee schedule in effect at the time of entry. 
 

3.3 Annual vehicle permit shall be affixed to the vehicle windshield or displayed to Casitas 
Personnel, whichever is applicable. 

 
 3.4 The annual boat permit shall be affixed by Casitas Personnel to the side of the vessel 
immediately behind the break of the bow at least 12 inches from the CF number and state registration sticker. 
 
 3.5 An annual vehicle permit or Frequent Visitor Card shall be valid for only one vehicle in the 
Park at a time. 



 

 
 

 4 

 
 3.6 Annual boat permits are issued to specific vessels and are transferable in the event of 
transfer or sale of the vessel or vehicle to a new owner upon application to the Department and the payment 
of a transfer fee.  Annual boat permits are not transferable between vessels in the event owner has more 
than one. 
 
 3.7 Annual permits shall be valid for the period ending on the month and year indicated on the 
permits unless revoked for cause. 
 
 3.8 Vessels owned by the Bait & Tackle Concessionaire for rental purposes shall not be required to 
obtain boat permits but shall be subject to all other rules and regulations of this Ordinance. 
 
 3.9 The Department may take possession of any certificate, card, permit or decal issued hereunder 
upon revocation, cancellation or suspension thereof or which is fictitious or which has been unlawfully or 
erroneously issued or altered. 
 
 3.10 Camping or day use permits shall be affixed by the customer to the inside windshield of the 
vehicle viewable from the front side of the campsite. 
 
 3.11 The storage facility is for storage of recreational items such as travel trailers, 5th wheel trailers, 
vessel trailers, vessels, campers, motor homes, etc., as determined by the General Manager. 
 
   3.12 All customers who store a recreation vehicle, vessel or other vehicle approved by the General 
Manager shall sign and comply with all terms and conditions as set forth in the “Self-Service Storage Facility 
Rental Agreement” including, but not limited to California Business and Professional Code, Chapter 10, 
Sections 21700  - 21716 and the most current Public Use Fees for the Park as established by the Board.  
Storage fees are due monthly in advance of the first day of each month following entry into the storage area.  
Fees shall be considered unpaid if not paid in accordance with the terms of the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
Self-Service Storage Facility Rental Agreement, as amended from time-to-time.  Casitas may terminate the 
Self-Service Storage Facility Rental Agreement when said fees are unpaid for fourteen (14) days.  Casitas may 
then take all actions required by law to remove the items. 
 
 3.13 At the discretion of the General Manager, in lieu of the remedies provided for in 3.12 above, 
Casitas may proceed to sue the owner or the person contracting for said storage in any court of competent 
jurisdiction or take any other proper steps to effect collection. 
 
 3.14 Should a check be returned by a bank for any reason, the customer shall be charged a returned 
check charge for each such check returned as determined by the Board by Ordinance.  In the event Casitas is 
unable to collect the amount due, the returned check(s) will be forwarded to the Ventura County District 
Attorney’s office, or other jurisdiction as applicable, for processing. 
 
4. SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS 
 
 4.1 The schedule of operations for the Park shall be set by resolution of the Board and may be 
revised from time to time by resolution of the Board. 
 
 4.2 The Department is authorized to restrict the public use of the Park by closing the Park or any 



 

 
 

 5 

Park area or any of its facilities, or restricting the hours of operation for good and sufficient reasons including, 
but not limited to, the following: 
 
  4.2.1 Sanitary protection of the watershed. 
 
  4.2.2 Fire prevention and/or fire suppression. 
 
  4.2.3 Construction or maintenance. 
 
  4.2.4 Dangerous or unsafe conditions. 
 
        4.2.5 To prevent damage to the Park or its facilities. 
 

4.2.6 Conservation of fish and game. 
 
4.2.7 Special activities or events and off-season restrictions. 

 
5. RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 
 5.1 Sanitary Regulations.  It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 
 
  5.1.1 To have, or to permit any child or animal under that person’s supervision to have body 

contact with the waters of the Lake or streams. 
 
  5.1.2 To throw or discharge into the waters of the Lake or any stream, or place upon the shore 

area thereof, or place in the Park unless in approved containers, any litter, waste 
products, trash, motor oil, or other debris, or to discharge into the Lake or any stream 
along the shore area thereof, any contaminating or polluting substance of any kind 
whatsoever, or to use any motor or container which leaks oil or gas into the waters of 
the Lake.  Household or industrial waste, including water softener brine, may not be 
brought into or disposed of in the Park. 

 
  5.1.3 To enter or reach into trash cans, recycle containers or dumpsters for the purpose of 

retrieving discarded materials. 
 
  5.1.4 To clean fish in the Park except at fish cleaning facilities provided by Casitas. 
 
  5.1.5 To operate a bilge pump on the Lake, except in an emergency, or at a place or places 

designated by the General Manager. 
 
  5.1.6 To allow waste from vessel washing to discharge into the Lake or along the shore 

except into a waste disposal system that has been approved by the General Manager.  
 
  5.1.7 To wade or swim in, or have body contact with the waters of the Lake or streams or to 

engage in any aquaplane, parasail, or windsail activities in, on, or over the Lake. 
 
  5.1.8 To operate, or permit to be operated, any vessel under that person’s supervision to tow 



 

 
 

 6 

or pull an aquaplane or similar device. 
 
  5.1.9 To permit any animal to enter into or remain within the Park unless the animal is on 

a leash of no more than six feet in length and under the immediate control of a 
person or confined in a vehicle. 

 
   5.1.9.1 To permit an animal under the person's control to remain outside a tent, camper 

or enclosed vehicle during the quiet hours. 
 
       5.1.9.2 To keep any noisy, vicious or dangerous animal, or one that is disturbing to 

other persons, as determined by Casitas Personnel. 
 
     5.1.9.3 To allow any animal to be within 50 feet laterally of the shores of the Lake or 

streams of the Park or on a vessel on the lake with the exception of dogs, 
which are allowed on vessels. 

 
       5.1.9.4 To have more than two such animals per campsite. 
 
   5.1.9.5 To abandon any animal in the Park. 
 
 5.2 Boating Regulations. 
 
  5.2.1 It shall be unlawful for any person to have, use, or operate a vessel in the Park that does 

not meet the minimum requirements for, or that does not have a Park boat permit. 
 
  5.2.2 All vessel owners and/or operators intending to launch take any type of vessel into the 

Park waters shall be required to complete a written survey provided by the Department, 
and declare under penalty of perjury that all of the information provided is true and 
correct.  

   5.2.2.1        The Board  may establish and have the Department enforce policies and / or 
Rules and Regulations, that will cause the Department to inspect vessels, 
trailers and tow vehicles to the degree necessary to determine if the vessel, 
trailer or tow vehicle is a threat to Lake Casitas due to contamination from 
Quagga or Zebra mussels in any of their life stages or other invasive species 
such as, but not limited to, hydrilla. Contamination may take the form of 
dreissenid mussels in any of their life stages (Quagga or Zebra), mud, 
biological debris, moisture, water, fish scales, weeds, sand/pebbles, and 
trash. The Department reserves the right to deny public access to the Park 
based on any potential for lake contamination.    

5.2.2.1 The Board may establish and have the Department enforce criteria, and/or 
rules and regulations, that will cause the Department to exclude and/or deny 
access to the Park by vessels boats and watercraft that have been launched 
into waters known to be contaminated with invasive aquatic species 
(including but not limited to quagga and zebra mussels, hydrilla) or if the 
Department determines by its inspection that an invasive aquatic species is 
present or may be present on and/or in the vessel and/or the vessel’s trailer.  
The Department reserves the right to deny public access to the Park based on 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  2.24"

Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough



 

 
 

 7 

any potential of Lake contamination by the vessel. 
 
  5.2.3 Each vessel, prior to being issued a boat permit, may be inspected by Casitas Personnel 

to determine that it meets the following standards: 
 
   5.2.3.1 It shall possess sufficient buoyancy to keep the vessel afloat if overturned or 

swamped when loaded to capacity. 
 
       5.2.3.2 It shall be not less than 11 feet in length or narrower in width than 4 feet nor 

over 35 feet in length, centerline measurement.  It shall have a minimum of 1 
foot of freeboard and, if fitted with a motor, shall have a capacity of not more 
that 400 horsepower.  Non standard vessels may be issued with a special boat 
permit. 

 
      5.2.3.3 It shall be in a seaworthy, clean, dry and sanitary condition. 
 
       5.2.3.4 It shall be a vessel of standard design as determined by the General Manager.  
 
        5.2.3.5 It shall be a vessel not possessing a holding tank or toilet unless such is 

sealed or otherwise rendered inoperable or designed so that no wastes can be 
discharged into the Lake. 

 
      5.2.3.6 It shall not be equipped with any motor or other means of propulsion 

machinery beyond its safe power capacity, taking into consideration the type 
and construction of such watercraft and other existing operating conditions. 

 
  5.2.4 Each vessel issued a permit hereunder or in the Park without a valid permit shall be 

subject to re-inspection and re-evaluation at any time the vessel is in or enters the Park 
to ascertain whether such vessel is properly rated and complies with the regulations for 
granting a boat permit.  If any vessel, upon such inspection and re-evaluation, is found 
not to meet the requirements of this Ordinance, then the permit for such vessel shall be 
revoked and the vessel shall be removed from the Park or impounded in the Park or 
impounded on the Lake at the owner's expense until the deficiency is corrected. 

 
   5.2.4.1 No person shall move, use or tamper with any impounded vessel, vehicle or 

equipment. 
 
       5.2.4.2 No person shall move, use or tamper with any device used to impound a vessel, 

vehicle or equipment. 
 
  5.2.5 It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 
 
   5.2.5.1  To allow a minor under twelve (12) years of age to occupy a vessel upon the 

Lake unless such minor is wearing a Coast Guard approved child's vest type 
life preserver. 

 
       5.2.5.2  To operate a vessel within a prohibited area designated by markers on the 



 

 
 

 8 

Lake or posted on the bulletin board at the ramp. 
 
      5.2.5.3  To tie a vessel to, or mutilate, damage, or move from position, any buoy or 

connecting line, chain, or cable placed or installed on the Lake. 
 
   5.2.5.4  To operate any vessel without allowing at least 250 feet clearance behind 

trolling fishing vessels so as to avoid fouling the trolling lines.  Trolling 
fishing vessels shall display a white flag not less than two feet square, to 
give adequate warning of such vessel's trolling activities. 

 
       5.2.5.5  To operate or navigate any commercial vessel while carrying passengers for 

hire without a Casitas special use permit or Casitas concession contract.        
      

 
   5.2.5.6  To take, use or operate any vessel without the specific consent of the owner 

or person in charge thereof, or to be an accessory to the taking, or use or 
operation of any vessel without such consent of the owner or person in 
charge thereof. 

 
       5.2.5.7  To operate a siren on any vessel used, operated or driven or propelled on the 

Lake except a vessel used by authorized Casitas Personnel in the 
performance of their duties. 

    
    5.2.5.8  To launch, retrieve or land any vessel except at an approved dock, ramp or 

such beaching areas as may be specifically designated by the General 
Manager. 

    
       5.2.5.9  To keep any vessel on shore overnight except in the designated area. 
 
   5.2.5.10 To operate or occupy any vessel between the time of sunset and sunrise 

unless a special use permit is issued by the General Manager. 
 
   5.2.5.11 To allow any person to ride or sit on either the gunwales or on the decking 

over the bow of the vessel while underway, unless such vessel is provided 
with adequate guards or railing to prevent passengers from being lost 
overboard.  Nothing in this section shall be construed to mean that 
passengers or other persons aboard a vessel cannot occupy the decking or 
the bow of the vessel to moor or cast off from a landing, or for any other 
necessary purpose. 

 
   5.2.5.12 It shall be unlawful for the owner of any vessel or any person having such in 

his charge or control to authorize or knowingly permit the same to be 
operated by any person who is incapable of operating such watercraft under 
the prevailing circumstances for any reason, including, but not limited to 
inexperience or physical or mental disability. 

 
   5.2.5.13 To operate, occupy or load any boat beyond the safe carrying capacity of 



 

 
 

 9 

such boat. 
 
  5.2.6 Speed Limits. 
 
   5.2.6.1  It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a vessel on the Lake at speeds 

in excess of those posted.   
 

   5.2.6.2  No person shall operate a vessel at a speed greater than is reasonable or 
prudent having due regard for weather, visibility and the number of other 
vessels on the Lake, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety 
of persons or property.   

 
  5.2.6.3  The following specific speed restrictions shall apply: 

 
         5.2.6.3.1 Maximum of forty (40) miles per hour sunrise to sunset, except 

as qualified below. 
 
        5.2.6.3.2 Five (5) miles per hour within 200 feet of any vessel landing, 

dock, ramp, or beaching area. 
 
     5.2.6.3.3 Five (5) miles per hour within 100 feet of any vessel not 

underway. 
 
  5.2.7 The General Manager is authorized to designate restricted speed zones for the Lake as 

deemed desirable for the safety of persons or property. 
 
  5.2.8 It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in a boat regatta, race, tournament or 

exhibition on the Lake without approval of the General Manager. 
 
  5.2.9 The General Manager is authorized to close the Lake or portions thereof to boating for 

good and sufficient reasons including but not limited to the following: 
 
   5.2.9.1 Dangerous water or weather conditions. 
 
       5.2.9.2 Unsatisfactory ramp, parking or roadway conditions. 
 
      5.2.9.3 Construction or movement of ramp facilities. 
 
       5.2.9.4 Special activities or events. 
 

5.2.10Any person having, using or operating a vessel in the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
shall abide by the applicable sections of the California Administrative Code Title 14, 
California State Boating Law and the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 
5.2.11It shall be unlawful to land or operate any amphibious seaplane on the lake unless 
authorized by the General Manager. 

 



 

 
 

 10 

 5.3 Vehicle Regulations.  
 
  5.3.1 It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 
 
   5.3.1.1  To operate a motor vehicle at a speed in excess of 15 miles per hour or to 

exceed 5 miles per hour in a picnic area, campground or parking lot, or to 
exceed the speed limit posted by the Department in any area.   

 
   5.3.1.2  To drive a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable or prudent having 

due regard for weather, visibility, traffic, the surface and width of the 
roadway, and in no event at a speed, which endangers the safety of persons 
or property. 

 
       5.3.1.3  To operate a motor vehicle except on designated roadways and parking 

areas, unless otherwise directed by the General Manager. 
 
      5.3.1.4  To throw or otherwise dispose of any burning material, trash, waste or other 

debris from a vehicle. 
 
       5.3.1.5  To park a vehicle in other than a designated parking area, or to park or leave 

parked a vehicle in a parking lot between the hours of sunset and sunrise, 
unless otherwise permitted by the General Manager. Vehicles parked in 
unauthorized areas will be towed away at the owner's expense. 

 
   5.3.1.6  To drive a vehicle in a careless or reckless fashion so as to endanger the said 

vehicle, it’s occupants, or any person, equipment, facilities, or property. 
 

   5.3.1.7  To park more than two (2) vehicles per campsite without specific 
authority from the General Manager. 

 
  5.3.2 The Board may establish special speed zones and they may be revised from time to time 

by resolution of the Board. 
 
  5.3.3 The General Manager is authorized to close any Park roadways or reduce the speed 

limit on any such roadways for good and sufficient reasons including but not limited to 
the following: 

 
   5.3.3.1 Construction or maintenance of facilities. 
 
   5.3.3.2 Dangerous roadway conditions. 

 
   5.3.3.3 Special activities or events. 
  
  5.3.4 Any person having, using or operating a motor vehicle, vehicle, or trailer in the Park 

shall abide by all applicable sections of the California Vehicle Code. 
 
 5.4 General and Conservation.  It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 



 

 
 

 11 

 
  5.4.1 To receive, bring, or cause to be brought into the Recreation Area any fish, crustacean, 

amphibian or aquatic plant from any place for the purposes of propagation or use as fish 
bait,. 

 
  5.4.2 To cut, pick, mutilate or destroy any vegetation, except when authorized by the General 

Manager. 
 
  5.4.3 To remove soil or rock except when authorized by the General Manager. 
 
  5.4.4 To mutilate, vandalize, or destroy any equipment or facility of others. 
 
  5.4.5 To receive, bring, or cause to be brought into the Recreation Area, or use, possess, or 

discharge, fireworks, firearms, or other explosives other than fuels except when 
authorized by the General Manager. 

 
  5.4.6 To possess or discharge a firearm, bow and arrow, projectile launching device, air or gas 

weapon or any device capable of injuring or killing any animal or damaging or 
destroying any property except when authorized by the General Manager. 

 
  5.4.7 To build, ignite, or utilize fires except in fire pits, stoves, incinerators, or other facilities 

provided by Casitas for the use of the public, except in portable barbecue pits or 
portable stoves of a type approved by the General Manager in camping or picnicking 
areas. 

 
  5.4.8 To leave any fire unattended or to fail to put out a fire prior to departure, or to leave a 

fire burning unattended while a person sleeps. 
 
  5.4.9 To molest, injure, or kill any animal or bird, or to allow any child or animal under 

that person’s supervision to molest, injure or kill any animal or bird, except that 
controlled hunting may be authorized by resolution of the Board. 

 
  5.4.10 To bring into, possess, or use any firearm or other weapon except for peace officers 

when in a duty status, except as may be authorized by resolution of the Board. 
 
  5.4.11 To possess fish in number or size, including but not limited to, trout, catfish, pan fish or 

bass, other than as specified in the Lake Casitas Recreation Area Fisheries Management 
Plan, as periodically amended. 

 
  5.4.12 No person who has not attained the age of twenty-one years shall use or possess any 

alcoholic beverage within the park. 
 
 5.5 Closed Areas.  It shall be unlawful for any person: 
 
  5.5.1 To take fish or attempt to fish except during the posted daylight hours when the Lake is 

open unless otherwise posted for special events. 
 



 

 
 

 12 

  5.5.2 To fish in an area or on a structure posted by Casitas, "Closed to Fishing". 
 
  5.5.3 To enter any area of the Park which is posted by Casitas against entry or is designated as 

a closed area. 
 
  5.5.4 To remain on or re-enter Casitas' premises or facilities after Casitas Personnel have 

specifically withdrawn consent and given notice thereof for a person to utilize said 
Casitas' premises or facilities. 

 
  5.5.5 To operate any aircraft of any nature or parachute on Casitas' premises without prior 

written permission from the General Manager. 
 
  5.5.6 To fail to obey signs posted by Casitas. 
 
  5.5.7 To use a loudspeaker, public address system, or amplifier without a valid special event 

permit or written permission from the General Manager. 
 
 5.6 Horses.  It shall be unlawful for any person to bring a horse into the Recreation Area 
without a valid special event permit or written permission of the General Manager. 
 
 5.7 Camping. 
 
  5.7.1 It shall be unlawful for any person to occupy a campground without first obtaining a 

camping permit or possessing a valid camping permit.  Camping permits shall be issued 
on the basis of per camping day, per campsite and per vehicle. 

 
  5.7.2 Campsites will be assigned at the entrance gate.  Camping units and camp gear left 

on campground without first obtaining a camping permit will be removed at the 
owner's expense. 

 
  5.7.3 Camping is limited to fourteen (14) days per party, during any calendar month period 

except that the General Manager is authorized to extend the limit up to twenty-eight 
(28) days on a case-by-case basis.  Campers and their equipment must leave the 
Recreation Area for a minimum of seventy-two hours (72) in order to be issued a permit 
for an additional fourteen (14) day camping period.  Special permits may be issued by 
the General Manager for extended stays beyond the above-described limits. 

 
  5.7.4 If, in the discretion of Casitas Personnel assigning campsites, a particular campsite is of 

sufficient size, a maximum of two vehicles and eight (8) persons may be permitted to 
camp within the same campsite. 

 
  5.7.5 Campers may use plumbing hook-ups, TV and electrical hookups by permit only. 
 
  5.7.6 It shall be unlawful for any person to disturb the peace and quiet of other Park visitors in 

any manner. 
 
5.7.7 It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of eighteen (18) years to occupy a 



 

 
 

 13 

campsite between the hours of 10:00 pm and 8:00 am unless accompanied by a 
responsible adult.  

 
5.7.8 It shall be unlawful for any person to construct or hang a clothesline inside the Park. 

 
5.8 Commercial Activity.  It shall be unlawful for any person or persons to engage in any 

commercial activity within the Park, except by permit or as authorized by the General Manager. 
 

5.9 Water Park. 
 

5.9.1 It shall be unlawful for any person to fail to obey the directions of any Casitas Personnel 
with regard to the rules and regulations of the operation of the Water Park. 

 
  5.9.2 It shall be unlawful for any persons to remain in the Water Park facility after their 

respective permits have been revoked by Casitas Personnel for failure to follow any 
rules or regulations. 

 
5.9.3 It shall be unlawful for any person to bring the following into the Water Park: glass 

containers, alcoholic beverages or controlled substances. 
 
5.9.4 It shall be unlawful for any person to enter into the waters of the Water Park wearing 

bathing apparel that is not approved by Casitas Personnel. 
 
5.9.5 It shall be unlawful for any person to distract or otherwise interfere with the duties of 

any Casitas Personnel. 
 
5.9.6 It shall be unlawful for any person to enter into the Water Park without paying all 

applicable fees and charges. 
 
6. CONSTITUTIONALITY.  If any competent court shall find any portion of this Ordinance 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of any other portion thereof. 
 



 

 
 

 14 

7. REPEAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 10-01. This Ordinance supersedes and repeals the provisions of 
Casitas Municipal Water District Ordinance No. 10-01. 
 
8. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance becomes effective this 12th day of February, 2014. 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
President 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
ATTEST: 
              
 
_________________________________________________ 
Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District        
 
 
 



 

 1

Boat Access Restrictions at Lake Casitas 
To Prevent Invasive Species Contamination 

 
Pursuant to Ordinance 14-01, restrictions have been imposed on vessels entering the Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area, including canoes and kayaks.  FLOAT TUBES ARE NOT ALLOWED. 
 
 
 
Customers may participate in a Tamper Proof Tag Program.  Vessels that pass inspection must complete a 
35-Day Quarantine period either inside or outside the Recreation Area.  Please read our Policies & 
Procedures for Vessel Inspections and the Tamper Proof Tag Program below.  
 
For questions, information and to make an inspection appointment, please call (805)-649-2233.  
 

******************************************************************** 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

POLICIES & PROCEDURES FOR VESSEL INSPECTION FOR QUAGGA MUSSELS 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
1. Policies & Procedures 
 
The policies and procedures in this document are for inspection criteria for vessels entering the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area.  These policies and procedures are to ensure that invasive species do not enter Lake Casitas 
and impact treatment infrastructure and threaten the lake’s ecosystem.     
 
In order to be consistent with policies, procedures and training, the Lake Casitas Recreation Area Vessel 
Inspection Checklist will be used on all vessel inspections.  This document outlines the process that staff 
must complete before a vessel of any kind is authorized to enter the Lake Casitas Recreation Area.  The 
Vessel Inspection Checklist is a check off sheet outlining aspects of this policies and procedures document.  
Each step in the Vessel Inspection Checklist has specific expectations associated with it and will only be 
conducted by fully trained staff.   
 
Lake Casitas Recreation Area staff will follow a zero tolerance policy for inspection criteria.  If at anytime 
during an inspection a vessel fails a step on the Vessel Inspection Checklist, the vessel will fail the inspection 
process and a re-inspection will need to be scheduled. The re-inspection will be scheduled no sooner than 
seven (7) days, meaning the same weekday of the following calendar week. Upon passing a re-inspection, 
the vessel will be quarantined for thirty-five (35) days. 
 
 Vessel Inspection Checklist 
 
 (a) The owner/operator is to be informed that an inspection will be performed and that Casitas 
has a zero tolerance policy for any water, including condensation, debris, or growth found on any vessel, 
trailer or towing vehicle due to possible transportation of invasive species by vessels and trailers. 
 
 (b) Staff will write the state boating identification number and owner/operator’s name and date on 
the Vessel Inspection Checklist. 
 
 (c) Staff will check the Casitas generated database of vessels that have previously been denied 
access due to inspection issues.  A re-inspection cannot be performed until the due date. 



 

 2

 
 (d) Customer will fill out and sign the “Vessel Survey Form” in staff’s presence.  Customer is 
voluntarily signing the Vessel Survey under penalty of perjury.  After the customer signs the survey, he/she 
will be given the bottom yellow carbon copy of the Vessel Survey form. 
  
 (e) Staff has been directed to provide educational materials to the boating community and general 
public.  Two handouts are given to each vessel operator/owner upon first entry to the park and in general as 
new information becomes available as follows: 
 
  (1) Casitas flyer entitled “Take Action to Save Our Lakes from Quagga Mussels”. 
  (2) Department of Fish & Wildlife flyer entitled “Don’t Move A Mussel”. 
 
 (f) Staff will request the owner/operator of the vessel to open all compartments. 
 
 (g) The vessel, trailer and vehicle inspection will include looking for moisture, water, debris 
including but not limited to: mud, weeds, sand/pebbles or growth on or in any inspected area.  Surfaces will 
also be touched to see if growth or mussels may be attached.  The inspection will be completed the same way 
each time starting at one side of the vehicle, vessel and trailer and ending at the other side.  Checking the 
“Yes” box indicates that the inspected material is dry and clear of debris.  If the “No” box is checked the 
vessel has failed, will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list and will not be eligible for re-inspection for 
seven (7) days.  
 
2. Areas of Inspection 

The following areas will be inspected by Staff: 

 (a) Vehicle Rear:  The vehicle bumper, tailgate or spare tire may have mud, grass, weeds or 
other debris on it.  If there are positive signs of mud, etc., the inspection cannot continue.  The vessel may 
return at a later date for re-inspection, towed by a different vehicle. 

 
 (b) Trailer Structure, Railings and Spare Tire:  The trailer, railings and spare tire may have 
mud, grass, weeds, debris or standing water.  If there are positive signs of mud, etc., the inspection cannot 
continue. The vessel may return at a later date for re-inspection or on a different trailer that is clean and dry. 
 
 (c) Vessel Hull:  The vessel hull will be inspected for growth and debris.  Growth may be visible 
if it the vessel has been in the water for an extended period of time.  Small mussels attached to a vessel can 
feel like sandpaper or sesame seeds.  If a vessel’s hull has any type of growth or debris, the vessel will not be 
eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (d) Transom:  The transom is at the back of the vessel where the engine is attached.  The transom 
may have several items of importance for inspection that mussels can attach to including the out drive, trim 
tabs, transducers, bilge plug area and through hull fittings.  The transom must be checked to make sure the 
surface is smooth and visibly clear of all debris and growth.  If there are positive signs of growth, etc. the 
vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the 
Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (e) Outdrive:  The outdrive is attached to the transom on stern drive vessels and the lower unit 
on outboard vessels.  It has intricate parts that make it easy for mussels to attach, hide and grow.  Staff will 
feel and look for any signs of growth, debris or texture of sandpaper.  If there are positive signs of growth, 
debris or texture of sandpaper, etc.  the vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven 



 

 3

(7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (f) Propeller/Shafts:  Mussels can attach and live on or around where the propeller attaches to 
the lower unit of the drive shaft.  Mussels can also attach to the shaft or connecting points of the vessel.  
These can be hard to see and must be inspected with a flashlight to verify if any mussels, debris or water is 
are present.  If there are positive signs of mussels, etc. the vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a 
minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (g) Trim Tabs:  Trim tabs are located on the lower portion of the transom and are usually metal 
plates that help stabilize the vessel while underway.  Staff will feel the corners, edges and look on the 
underside of the trim tabs for debris and growth.  If there are positive signs of growth, etc. the vessel will not 
be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait  
list. 
 
 (h) Transducers:  These are located on the transom or bottom of the hull near the stern of the 
vessel.  They are used in conjunction with a computer to determine depth, speed and water temperature.  
Growth or debris can appear on them.  If there are positive signs of growth, etc. the vessel will not be eligible 
for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (i) Bilge Plug:  If the bilge plug is pulled when the vessel arrives at the lake, there should be no 
fluid or debris coming from it.  Staff will carefully insert fingers in the plug hole to determine if debris is 
blocking water from exiting.  If the bilge plug is not pulled, the owner/operator will be requested to pull the 
plug.  If water exits, the plug will be reinstalled to prevent additional water from being released. If there are 
positive signs of growth, etc. the vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days 
and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (j) Through Hull Fittings:  Through hull fitting in all boats have the potential to store mussels 
in the right conditions.  To check these fittings, Staff will use a flashlight to look inside and feel for 
irregularities.  If water or debris is observed or felt, the vessel will be eligible for re-inspection for a 
minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (k) Bait Tank/Live Well/Compartments:  Bait tanks, live wells and compartments should be 
dry and clear of all water and debris.  Some compartments do not drain completely due to the way they are 
manufactured.  Any debris in compartments is not acceptable.  Common debris often found includes; fish 
scales, weeds, small pebbles and trash.  If it does have positive signs of fish, etc., the vessel will not be 
eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
 (l) Bilge:  The bilge is at the bottom of the inside stern of the vessel.  It may not be visible in all 
boats due to various boat designs.  The bilge should be clean from all water and debris.  If there are positive 
signs of water, etc. the vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will 
be placed on the Casitas 7-day quarantine list. 
  
 (m) Anchor/Fenders and Line:  Anchors can have mud or debris on them.  If an anchor, fender 
and lines attached have been in infested water for an extended period of time then mussels and debris can 
attach.  Staff must check these items for mud, growth and debris.  If there are positive signs of mud, etc. the 
vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the 
Casitas 7-day wait list. 
  
 (n) Trolling Motor:  Trolling motors can pick up plants and debris while being used and must be 
inspected.  These items must be checked for mud, growth and debris.  If there are positive signs of mud, etc., 



 

 4

the vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days and will be placed on the 
Casitas 7-day wait list. 
 
The Vessel Inspection Procedures, Vessel Inspection Checklist, Vessel Survey Forms and Casitas handouts 
have been developed to ensure proper inspections of vessels, trailers and vehicles to prevent Lake Casitas 
from becoming infested with invasive species.  All documents pertaining to the Vessel Inspection Procedures 
are subject to change due to updated policies at the full and sole discretion of the District.   
 

******************************************************************** 
 

Scroll down to see Checklist & 
Quarantine & Tamper Proof Tag Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5

        DATE_________________________________ 
 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA - VESSEL INSPECTION CHECKLIST 
 
CF #: _______________  Owner/Operator (Print Name) ______________________________________________ 
 

     Computer check to see if vessel has been previously denied entry 

     Completed Vessel Survey Form.  Have owner/operator complete and sign form. If owner/operator has                             

        checked any lakes on the form, deny entry to the vessel. 

     Informational handouts “Take Action to Save Our Lakes” and “Don’t Move a Mussel” flyers given. 

     Request vessel owner to open all compartments and have the bilge plug pulled. 

     Inform owner/operator that Casitas has a no tolerance policy for any water, debris or growth found on any 

       vessel due to possible transportation of invasive species by vessels and trailers. 

Vessel Inspection: Check for WATER, DEBRIS or GROWTH and check all smooth surfaces for 

“SANDPAPER” feel. 

Clear of Water, Debris and/or Growth: Check appropriate box below. 

Yes   No  
            Vehicle rear     

            Trailer structure, railings, spare tire 

            Vessel hull 

            Transom 

            Outdrive  

            Prop/shafts (propeller on the engine) 

            Trim tabs (located on back of hull near engine. Not all vessels have them) 

            Transducers 

            Bilge plug pulled – no fluid or debris 

            Through hull fittings 

            Bait tank/live wells/compartments 

            Bilge (may not be visible) 

            Anchor/fenders and line 

            Trolling Motor 

 Your vessel has not cleared the inspection due to water and or debris in one or more areas.  A re-inspection will 
need to be scheduled with staff. The re-inspection will be scheduled no sooner than seven (7) days, meaning the same 
weekday of today’s date next calendar week. This zero tolerance has been established to ensure the safety of Lake 
Casitas water quality and its ecosystem.  Thank you for understanding in this matter.   
 

     OK to enter Lake Casitas Recreation Area, thank you for your cooperation. 
 

______________ ____________________________________ 
 Date   Staff (PRINT NAME) 



 

 6

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 
VESSEL QUARANTINE, RE-ENTRY, TEMPORARY STORAGE AND 

TAMPER-PROOF TAG PROGRAMS 
 

THESE PROGRAMS ARE NOT AVAILABLE FOR 
SKI BOATS WITH INTERNAL BLADDERS OR FLOAT TUBES. 

 
Programs have been developed for quarantine procedures, tamper-proof cables and tags and provision for 
limited temporary storage. 
 
A. INSPECTION 
 
1. Boat inspections are available by appointment only. 
 
2. An inspection will be conducted by authorized staff only in accordance with the attached policy 
entitled “Policies & Procedures for Vessel Inspection for Quagga Mussels”.  If the vessel passes inspection 
the vessel will continue with the thirty-five (35) day Quarantine process described in B below.  If the vessel 
does not pass, the customer’s name and vessel state issued identification numbers will be placed on the 7-day 
wait list.  The vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven (7) days. 
 
B. 35-DAY QUARANTINE PROCESS 
 
1. If the customer has been assigned a dry storage space (Trailer Storage Area): 
 
 (a) Verify that the vessel has a current annual boat permit. 
 (b) Place a customer or Casitas owned cable on the vessel with a Casitas tag. 
 (c) Enter release date in log book. 

(d) Escort the customer to his/her assigned space. 
 (e) Place tongue lock or cuff over the tongue of the trailer. 
 (d) Advise customer to retain a copy of the Checklist and Vessel Survey containing the 

quarantine expiration date. 
 
2. If the customer has an assigned Boat Rental slip: 
 
 (a) Verify that the vessel has a current annual boat permit. 
 (b) Place a customer or Casitas owned cable on the vessel with a Casitas tag. 
 (c) Enter release date in log book. 

(d) Escort the customer to his/her assigned space. 
 (e) Place tongue lock or cuff over the tongue of the trailer. 
 (d) Advise customer to retain a copy of the Checklist and Vessel Survey containing the 

quarantine expiration date. 
 
3. If the customer is participating in the Tamper-Proof Tag Program and is completing the thirty-five 
(35) day Quarantine period inside the park: 
 
  (a) Direct the customer’s attention to the disclaimer for temporary quarantine parking on the 

signed Vessel Survey. 
 (b) Place a customer or Casitas owned cable on the vessel with a Casitas tag. 



 

 7

 (c) Enter release date in log book. 
 (d) Escort the customer to the designated space. 
 (e) Place tongue lock or cuff over the tongue of the trailer. 
 (f) Advise customer to retain a copy of the Checklist and Vessel Survey containing the 

quarantine expiration date. 
 
4. If the customer declines to participate in the Tamper-Proof Tag Program and is completing the thirty-
five (35) day Quarantine period inside the park: 
 
 (a) Direct the customer’s attention to the disclaimer for temporary quarantine parking on the 

signed Vessel Survey. 
(b) Place a Casitas owned cable on the vessel with a Casitas tag. 

 (c) Enter release date in log book. 
 (d) Escort the customer to the designated space. 
 (e) Place tongue lock or cuff over the tongue of the trailer. 
 (f) Advise customer to retain a copy of the Checklist and Vessel Survey containing the 

quarantine expiration date. 
 (g) Upon completion of the thirty-five (35) day quarantine collect applicable fees (e.g. day use or 

overnight boat, etc.). 
 
5. The customer may complete the thirty-five (35) day Quarantine Process outside the park by 
participating in the applicable sections of the Tamper-Proof Tag Program described in B below. 
 
6. At the end of the quarantine period, staff will remove the lock or cuff.  It is the responsibility of 
customers to immediately remove their vessels from the quarantine area.  Any vessel left in the quarantine 
area longer than fifteen (15) days after release of the tongue lock or cuff will be removed by Casitas and 
stored at the owner’s sole cost and expense. 
 
B. TAMPER-PROOF TAG PROGRAM 
 
The purpose of this policy and procedure is to guarantee that vessels entering and leaving periodically have 
not been in any infected waters.  This will be accomplished by installing a tamper-proof cable, padlock, and 
a tamper-proof security tag. The tamper-proof cable must be attached to both the vessel and the trailer. The 
connection points must be in a location that prevents a part of the vessel or trailer from being removed 
without damaging the cable or tamper-proof security tag. 
 
1. All vessels are subject to a thirty-five (35) day Quarantine period which may be completed inside or 
outside the park. 
 
2. Customers must schedule appointments with authorized staff. 
  
3. Inspections will be conducted by authorized staff only in accordance with the inspection policy. 
 

(a) If the vessel passes inspection it will continue with the Tamper-Proof Tag Program process.  
The customer will be advised to retain a copy of the Checklist and Vessel Survey containing the quarantine 
expiration date. 

 
(b) If the vessel does not pass, the customer’s name and vessel identification number will be 

placed on the 7-day quarantine list.  The vessel will not be eligible for re-inspection for a minimum of seven 
(7) days and will be placed on the Casitas 7-day wait list. 



 

 8

 
4. For Vessels Completing the Thirty-Five (35) day Quarantine Period Outside the Park 
 
 (a) The vessel owner/operator will be informed that a security kit must be purchased consisting of 
a weatherproof tamper-proof steel cable, weather resistant padlock and a tamper-proof tag.  The connection 
point areas must be reviewed with the vessel owner/operator with an explanation as to why these locations 
have been chosen. 
 
 (b) The vessel owner/operator shall install the equipment as needed. The connection points must 
be verified and relocated by the owner/operator if necessary. 
 
 (c) The tamper-proof security seal must be installed as required and the Tamper Proof Tag 
Program Log updated.  The vessel owner/operator must verify the tamper-proof security number and cable 
number and signs the Tamper Proof Tag Program Log.  The vessel owner/operator must be informed that if 
the weatherproof tamper-proof steel cable and tamper-proof security tag are not in place or damaged in any 
way upon his/her return, a new inspection and thirty-five (35) day Quarantine period will be required. 
 
 (d) The vessel owner/operator must be informed that the vessel has been placed on a thirty-five 
(35) day Quarantine list and that they may leave the park and return after the thirty-five (35) day Quarantine 
period has been completed.   
 
 (e) Vessels returning to the park after completing the Tamper-Proof Tag Program will have the 
weatherproof tamper-proof steel cable and tamper-proof security tag inspected by Staff and the cable and tag 
numbers verified with the entries in the Log.  As long as the tamper-proof security cable and tag are not 
missing or damaged, the tamper-proof security tag will be removed by Staff and the vessel will be allowed to 
enter the park and launch.  Special Note:  A “Clean & Dry Inspection”, will not be required because the 
vessel and trailer will not have been in any other body of water.  
 
 (f) The vessel may be subject to random bilge water test that will examine water microscopically 
at the discretion of Casitas Municipal Water District.  
 

(g) If there is any evidence that the weatherproof tamper-proof steel cable and/or tamper-proof 
security tag have been compromised, damaged or removed, staff must obtain a second opinion before the 
vessel is rejected. 

 
5. For Vessels Completing the Thirty-Five (35) Day Quarantine Period Inside the Park Without 
Participating in the Tamper-Proof Tag Program 
 
 Any vessel returning to the park without participating in the Tamper-Proof Tag Program must 
complete the inspection and thirty-five (35) day Quarantine period.  
 
 
 
G:\WPDOCS\Website-lakecasitas.info\Quaggas\QuaggaTempRestrictionInspection&QuarantineCleanDraft-35Days-1.31.14.doc 







                                   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2014  
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
Re: Salary Range Adjustment and Job Description Revision to Create the Position for a Public 

Affairs/Resource Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors acknowledge and support the General Manager’s 
recommendation for a salary adjustment and a revision of the job description to the Public Affairs/Resource 
Manager position.   
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
In 2003, the District developed the position of the Water Conservation/Public Affairs Manager and hired 
Ronald Merckling for this position.  Over the course of ten years, Mr. Merckling fulfilled the requirements of 
the initial job description and he has expanded his knowledge, work scope, and public presence for the benefit 
of the District.   
 
Mr. Merckling has always availed himself to additional tasks and assignments such as leading the cross-
connection control program, developing the District’s Urban Water Management Plan in 2005 and 2010, and 
leading the development of the District’s safety program.  Recent key efforts by Mr. Merckling include, but are 
not limited to, the administration of over $1 million in grants funding for the Senior Canyon Project, obtaining 
multiple water conservation grants for the District, fighting for District’s concerns on State’s best management 
practices reporting and District characterization, and representation for the District at the Ventura County 
Watershed Council and Ventura County Association of Water Agencies, development of what will become the 
revisions to the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program.   
 
In my efforts to identify comparable job duties and salaries, I arrived at the Resources Manager position that 
several other regional water agencies employ to manage duties that are similarly assigned to Mr. Merckling. In 
comparison of salaries, it appears that a 10% increase to the current level of pay is in order.  An additional task 
in the job description is that in the absence of the General Manager, this position could be designated with 
limited authority as the Acting General Manager. 
 
The proposal to make the change of salary, title and job description has been shared with the Executive 
Committee.  Although this action is within the authority of the General Manager, I believe that the District is 
best served by this action being reviewed by the Board of Directors.  A copy of the job description is attached 
for the Board’s information. 
 
In closing, the General Manager would hope that the Board of Directors would acknowledge and support the 
salary adjustment and revision of the job title and description for Mr. Merckling. 
 



  
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
JOB TITLE:  Public Affairs/Resource Manager  
REPORTS TO: General Manager 
FSLA Status:  Exempt  
Position Type:  Full-time, At-will   
DATE:   February 2014 
 
DEFINITION 
Under general supervision and direction of the General Manager, plans, organizes, directs and 
coordinates the District’s water conservation activities and programs, public relations and media 
activities, District safety program, and acts as the District’s legislative liaison.  Provides staff 
assistance to the General Manager and in the absence of the General Manager, may be designated in 
a limited capacity as the Acting General Manager.  
 
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:   
 
Administrative: 

 In conjunction with the General Manager and other managers, assist in developing policy, 
strategic and long-range planning, and budgetary recommendations to the General Manager 
and the Board of Directors. 

 
 Provides direction and leadership to staff in the implementation of the District’s cross-

connection control program. 
 

 Provides direction and leadership to staff in the implementation of the District’s safety and 
vehicle maintenance programs. 
 

 Provides direction and leadership to staff by conducting and coordinating employee training 
in the areas of team building, safety, and emergency preparedness. 

 
 Perform special projects, assignments, and manage special consultants as assigned by the 

General Manager.  Develop documents (such as request for proposals, scope of work, 
agreements, specialized analysis and reports, etc.) related to water issues, retaining 
consultants, and governmental reporting requirements.       

 
 Perform related duties and responsibilities as required and assigned by the General Manager. 

 
 Interviews and recommends selection of employee candidates; establishes performance 

expectations and performance standards for staff;  oversees plans and actions for employee 
development; prepares and conducts employee evaluations; conducts informal counseling on 
work issues; prepares documentation and improvement plans to address work performance 
problems/deficiencies, and recommends and implements approved disciplinary actions. 

 
 
Public Affairs: 



 Is the single point of contact for all public affairs and media requests and coordinates all 
media requests.  Prepares and distributes news releases and other media material.  Serves in 
the role of the Public Information Officer in the event of emergencies. 

 
 Serves as the liaison between the District and the media, business interests, community 

service organizations, local homeowner associations, and customer groups. 
 

 Manage, prepare, and regularly update brochures, newsletters, and internet sites pertaining to 
District activities for distribution to the public, regional and local policymakers, and 
purveyor management. 

 
 Present District programs, as assigned on behalf of the District, to the Board of Directors, 

public groups, and associations. 
 
Water Conservation: 

 Provides direction and leadership in the implementation of the District’s water conservation 
programs, including but not limited to water conservation policies and practices (such as 
Water Allocation and Efficiency Program and Water Waste Ordinance); coordination of 
District’s water use policies with that of the State and local water use policies; 
implementation of customer service programs and the water conservation Best Management 
Practices. 

 
 Responsible for processing local and state surveys, questionnaires, and reports, and for 

development of documents and reports regarding water use, conservation, and related 
matters 

 
 Actively promotes water awareness and conservation; coordinates activities with all 

customer classifications, water purveyors, schools, and other public and private 
organizations. 

 
Legislative Liaison: 

 Serves as the liaison between the District and State and local political interests, tracking 
legislative actions, arranging and attending meetings with legislative representatives, and 
preparing letters regarding legislative action to advocate for the District’s interests.  

 
 Conducts research and analysis on legislative matters, resulting in recommendations to the 

General Manager and the Board of Directors. 
 

 Monitor and evaluate on a continuing basis applicable pending legislative, regulatory and 
legal action at the federal, state and local levels. 
 

 Coordinate with other agency legislative representatives and elected offices to promote 
District’s legislative interests. 

 
 
 
 
 



QUALIFICATIONS: 
 
Knowledge of:   

 Principles, techniques, and methods of project management; 
 Media and public relations; community education and public involvement methods and 

techniques; 
 District programs, services, policies and procedures; laws, practices, and requirements 

related to watershed management, water conservation, environmental protection, and 
documentation; 

 Public and environmental concerns and issues related to water and resource conservation; 
 Customer service principles, practices and techniques. 

 
Ability to:  

 Develop and implement effective and innovative programs to achieve organizational goals 
and objectives including media and public relations, customer service, resources 
conservation, legislative, and community education and public involvement programs; 

 Communicate and implement District’s customer service ethic and standards; 
 Provide needed leadership and direction to staff; effectively communicate the District’s 

legislative position and gain needed support and assistance for District programs and 
policies; 

 Organize work to meet deadlines; work with constantly changing priorities;  
 Research and analyze documentation to derive sound recommendations; 
 Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing; 
 Supervise, manage, train and evaluate assigned staff; 
 Work effectively with employees, peer departments, the General Manager and Board of 

Directors, outside private and public agencies and the community to meet the goals and 
objectives of the District; 

 Participate in and contribute to meetings and conferences with personnel of various 
professional and non-professional backgrounds to solve problem and reach agreements.  

 
Physical Activities:  Primarily in an office setting, sitting for extended time periods.  Travels by 
automobile in conducting District business.  Communicates orally and in writing with District 
management, co-workers, and the public in face-to-face, one-to-one, and group settings.  Regularly 
uses a telephone for communication; uses office equipment such as computer terminals, copiers, and 
FAX machines.  May occasionally walk in uneven terrain in an outdoor environment. 
 
Physical and Mental Requirements: 
The physical and mental requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by 
employees to successfully perform the essential functions of this class.  Reasonable accommodations 
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions. 
 

Physical: 
• Requires sitting, standing, bending and reaching; talk or hear, in person, in meetings and by 

telephone. 
• Requires manual dexterity and use of hands and fingers to handle and feel sufficient to 

operate a District vehicle, computers and standard office machines. 
• Requires normal range of hearing.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 

and distance vision and ability to adjust focus.   



• Ability to lift and carry up to approximately up to 25 pounds. 
 
Mental: 
• Use written and oral communication skills; read and interpret complex data, information and 

documents. 
• Require to analyze and solve problems. 
• Required to observe and interpret people and situations. 
• Required to use math and mathematical reasoning; learn and apply new information or skills. 
• Required to perform highly detailed work on multiple, concurrent tasks with constant 

interruptions, under intensive deadlines. 
 
Experience and Training Guidelines: 
Any combination of experience and education that would likely provide the required knowledge and 
abilities is qualifying.   
 
Experience: Five years of increasing responsible management experience in a related field which 
included responsibilities for staffing, training, budgeting, program development and implementation, 
and which provided for significant public contact.  
 
Education:   Equivalent to a Bachelor degree from an accredited college or university with major 
course work in Business Administration, Communications, or similar field of study.   A degree of 
Master of Public Administration is preferred. 
 
Licenses or Certificates: Possession of an appropriate and valid California driver's license with 
a good driving record as evidenced by freedom from multiple or serious traffic violations or 
accidents for at least two years duration.  Possession of an AWWA Grade I Cross-Connection 
Control Specialist Certificate and a Grade I Distribution Operator Certificate issued by the State of 
California within one year of appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:________________ Employee Signature:_____________________________________ 
   
 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Denise Collin - Accounting Manager 
 
Re:  Lake Casitas Improvement – 1023 Application for Recognition of Exemption 
  Power of Attorney assignment 
   
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve and sign form 2848 – Power of Attorney and Declaration of Representative. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 
 
At the December 28, 2005 Board Meeting, the Lake Casitas Improvement Foundation (L.C.I.F.) 
opened a meeting, moved and approved to: 
 

a. Appointment of Directors 
b. Approving and signing the tax returns for the 501c3 Corporation. 
c. Approval of paying the invoice for the tax preparation in the amount of $500.00 
d. Approving the policy on conflict of interest. 

 
Although all the items above were on the Board Agenda, from the minutes of the meeting it is 
explained by Mr. Johnson that “this item could be delayed as Mrs. Weinberger is not able to be 
in attendance.  President Hicks thought that some action needed to be taken on the taxes and 
asked if this could be done with just the members of the Board.  Mr. Johnson reminded the 
Board that all it takes is a quorum of the Board to take action.”  Items b. and c. were approved 
and President Hicks appointed the current Board members as directors of the foundation. 
 
However, it is unclear if the actual 1023 501(c)(3) form, per the Internal Revenue Service 
(I.R.S.) was filed with the I.R.S., it is not known if this was the intent of L.C.I.F. not to file it or, if 
the applications were not filed in error.  Moreover, L.C.I.F. has applied and received an 
Employer Identification Number from the I.R.S., it currently appears that no annual tax return(s) 
since 2005 have been filed with the I.R.S.  
 
When the I.R.S. was contacted to inquire about the receipt of the application (form 1023 & 3500) 
and subsequent tax returns, it was determined that no record of a tax exempt status was active 
or received and no tax returns filed.  It was advised by the I.R.S. that a Power of Attorney (form 
2848) be on file with the I.R.S. to obtain further information and to file the necessary forms to 
obtain a Non-profit Exemption status. 
 



 
 

1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  February 3, 2014  
 
TO:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for December 2013 
 
Visitation Numbers 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for December 2013:   
 

 Dec. 2012 Dec. 2013 Nov. 2012 
Visitor Days 21,132 21,856 34,776 
Camps 2,148 1,810 3,364 
Cars 5,283 5,464 8,694 
Boats 126 123 214 
Kayaks & Canoes 10 0 42 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2012/2013 333,066
2013/2014 318,188
% Change -4.467

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating  
There were 6 cables sold for new inspections, 8 vessels were re-inspected and a total of 360 vessels 
were retagged. Six vessels failed the first inspection.        
 
Night fishing from shore was held December 13 and 14.  
 
Administration 
The Park Services Manager attended a Playground Inspector Certification course on December 10 – 
12, and is now a Certified Playground Inspector.  
 
A project for commercial filming and photography was conducted in the Lake Casitas Recreation Area 
on December 19.  
 
On December 20, 2013 Casitas was informed that Lake Piru staff had positively identified Quagga 
mussel on their patrol vessels. In response Casitas’ General Manager issued emergency action for 



 
 

2

changing the vessel quarantine period, (now at 35 days after a clean and dry inspection) and the Board 
of Directors, on January 8, 2014 established an Ad Hoc Committee to review the current Ordinance, 
policies and procedures. It is expected the Board will review recommendations from the Ad Hoc 
Committee in February 2014.         
 
Incidents  
Incidents in the month of December that required assistance from outside agencies included an 
eviction.   
 
Revenue Reporting 
The figures below illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation Area’s revenue collected in the respective 
month (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per the District’s Financial Summary 
generated by the Finance Manager. 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

FY 13/14

FY 12/13

    





 1

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 5, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Finance Committee Meeting of January 24, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Mary Bergen and Director Jim Word  
 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Accounting Manager and Treasurer Denise Collin 
 Public:  Mr. Robert Baskin 
  

2. Public comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Management comments.  

The General Manager updated the Committee on the decision by Judge Borrell to move the hearing 
date for the Golden State Water Company v. Casitas case to February 24, 2014.  Today’s action was 
the consideration of the citizens joining the case as a class. 
 

4. Review of the Financial Statement for December 2013. 
The Committee reviewed the expenditures in various work sections of the District.  Denise Collin noted 
that one-half of the taxes have been received, as anticipated by staff, and that a minor correction will be 
made in the Recreation statement to move numbers one line into position.     

 
5. Review of the Water Consumption for December 2013. 

The Committee reviewed the water consumption numbers for December 2013.    The upward trending 
water demands by Resale and Agricultural classifications are indicative of the dry weather pattern and 
depleted groundwater basins, transferring the demand to the Lake Casitas supply.  There was a 
notable decline in resale gravity from previous months.   

 
6. Review of the request for Leak Relief from Pedro Martinez. 

Mr. Martinez has experienced a leak at his residence.  The leak relief amount is slightly above the 
authorization level given to the Accounting Manager.  The committee reviewed the documentation and 
suggested that this request be moved to the next meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 
7. Review of the request from Robert Baskin for high usage. 

Mr. Baskin’s water usage during November 2013 unexplainably rose to nine (9) acre-feet on his five 
acre parcel - - which has approximately 3 acres of orchard that qualify for an agricultural water rate.  
The Committee and Mr. Baskin discussed the point that agricultural accounts do not have access to 
leak relief.  Mr. Baskin requested the meter be looked at for potential high reading error and Mr. Baskin 
will discuss possible water use by neighbors that might come from an accidental interconnection to Mr. 



 2

Baskin’s water system.  Director Word noted that without some verification of how the water usage 
escalated, it will be difficult to provide a cost relief to Mr. Baskin. 
 

8. Review recommendation to set reserves 2013-14. 
Denise Collin presented recommendations for setting reserves for FY 2013-14.It is recommended to 
designate $350,000 to Other Post Employee Benefits (OPEB) and $350,000 to Storm Damage, 
increasing the reserves for Storm Damage.  The Committee agreed with the direction of the 
recommendation and suggested this item be moved to the Board of Directors.    

 
9. Discussion regarding LCIF. 

Denise Collin is in the process of determining the tax status of the Lake Casitas Improvement 
Foundation and cannot receive information from the IRS unless she has power of attorney on behalf of 
the Foundation.  The Committee recommends that the LCIF Board consider the authorization of the 
power of attorney to the Accounting Manager. 
  

10. Request by Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company to adjust rate. 
The General Manager informed the Committee of a recent request by the Senior Canyon Mutual Water 
Company (SCMWC) to have an adjustment in the water rate, based on 2013 composition of water use 
by agriculture and residential customers of SCMWC.  The committee suggested that rates be looked at 
on a five year average basis, rather than moving the rate each and every year.  The General Manager 
will communicate this direction with SCMWC. 

 
11. Discussion regarding Budget Preparation Schedule. 

The General Manager has prepared a budget preparation schedule for review by the Committee.  Staff 
are preparing budget for review by the General Manager in late February.  The schedule outlines 
actions to be accomplished by the Board at their regular meetings.  Additional discussion is needed to 
determine if the Board desires a budget workshop.  This item will be presented to the Board of 
Directors. 





CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 4, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Water Resources Committee Meeting of January 28, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.   Director Baggerly and Director Kaiser  

 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Staff – Ron Merckling 

 Public – Brian Ramsey, Ojai Valley Inn and Spa 
 
2. Public Comments. None.  

 
3. Board Comments.  None. 
 
4. Manager Comments.  

Ron Merckling announced that Casitas will be a part of the grant proposal to expand 
the conservation program to include more weather-based controllers and ultra-low 
flush toilets to customers. 
 
The General Manager suggested to the Committee that Casitas provide visible 
signage concerning the drought and need for water conservation.  Ron Merckling will 
work on the message.   
 

5. Water System Improvements at Ojai Valley Inn Golf Course. 
Mr. Brian Ramsey, Ojai Valley Inn’s Golf Course Superintendent, provided an overview 
of the project planned for the golf course.  It has been over twenty-five years since the 
last improvements to the golf course irrigation system. A key objective of the project is 
to reduce the time it takes to irrigate the course and to reduce water demand by 
approximately 30 percent.  Mr. Ramsey has met with Neil Cole to discuss various 
options to meet each of these objectives.  It is recognized that the water service from 
the Fairview Zone is limited and cannot accept additional demand to meet the timing 
objective.  The Villanova Zone can accommodate the additional demand load with an 
increase in meter size, but Mr. Ramsey has pointed out that the Villanova Zone lacks 
enough pressure to irrigate all areas of the course.  The additional pump station 
needed is priced at approximately $360,000 and will incur on-going electrical costs.  
Mr. Ramsey suggested that the district may consider some cost sharing in the pump 
plant.  
 
The Committee agreed that this is an opportunity to achieve long-term water benefits 
for the District and the Ojai Valley Inn by working toward a cooperative solution.  Mr. 



Ramsey will be available during the second week of February to discuss options that 
may be presented to the Board of Directors. 
 

6. Lake Casitas Fire Station Upgrades – USBR NEPA Review. 
The General Manager shared his review of the NEPA document received from the 
Bureau of Reclamation, describing the improvements planned for the Lake Casitas 
Fire Station that is operated by the US Forest Service.  The primary changes involve 
the installation of a new septic system and removal of the old septic system, 
installation of a 10,000 gallon water storage tank and the expansion of the helicopter 
landing areas.   The one comment provided by the General Manager was that there be 
clear documentation of expanding on to Casitas reservoir Watershed lands for this 
project.  No further action required.  
 

7. Update on Water Efficiency and Allocation Program.   
The General Manager reported that progress has been slowed by other priorities in 
January.  Work will progress toward completion. 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 4, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Recreation Committee Meeting of February 3, 2014 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.   Director Jim Word and Director Bill Hicks  
  General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
  Park Services Manager Carol Belser 
  Park Services Officer Suzi Taylor 

Public:  Dee Bennett, Gary Wolfe 
    

2. Public comments.  None. 
 

3. Board/Management comments.   
PSM Belser reported to the Committee that the cross country group has improved their 
storage shed with a new roof. 

 
4. Rowing Club Relocation Update. 

Dee Bennett informed the Committee that the relocation of the Rowing Club has been delayed 
because of other expenses and priorities that have occurred.  The Rowing Club is hoping to 
relocate before this summer.  

 
5. State of California department of Boating and Waterways Grant Application for 

Replacement Patrol Boat.  
PSM Belser and PSO Taylor presented to the Committee the opportunity to acquire a new 
patrol boat and turn the Cortez boat back in to the State.  The new patrol boat would be 
purchased on a full reimbursement by the State Boating and Waterways.  After several years 
of operating the Cortez, staff has found that it is not suitable for Lake Casitas operations. The 
title on these boats remains with the State.  The Committee suggested bringing the grant 
application to the Board of Directors. 
 

6. Casitas Marina Winter Discount and Promotion. 
PSM Belser and Gary Wolfe, Lake Casitas Marina, are working on various marketing 
proposals to bring more attention to the lake and marina.  The initial proposal is to discount 
kayak rentals with the café pass.  From the Committee discussion, there seems to be a need 
for more discussion between Mr. Wolfe and PSM Belser before implementing the promotion.   
 

7. California Home Brewers Festival 2014 Update.  
PSM Belser reported that staff had met with representatives of the California Home Brewers 
Association (HBA) regarding the current status of the event.  It appears that the Association 
has some issues to resolve with the State Alcohol and Beverage Control (ABC) before being 
permitted to conduct the festival at Lake Casitas.  HBA anticipates that they will hear from 
ABC with a determination within two weeks.  HBA is aware that unless ABC authorizes the 
event, the event will not occur at the LCRA. 



 
8. Tequila Festival Application Discussion. 

PSM Belser reported that she has received a request to hold a Tequila festival in August, 
2014. Staff will meet with the Sheriff’s Department to discuss concerns of serving hard liquor 
at the event.  This application will be processed and evaluated by staff prior to issuing a permit 
for the event. 
 

9. California Department of Fish and Wildlife Update on Casitas Trout Stocking. 
PSM Belser reported that representatives from DFW visited Casitas on January 30, 2014, to 
review Casitas Dam and the streams entering Lake Casitas.  There was no indication on the 
approach or contents of the Biological Assessment that DFW is preparing for Lake Casitas.  
The Committee suggested that the LCRA website be updated to include an announcement on 
the fish stocking moratorium and that it could possibly impact the annual Kid’s Fishing Day. 
 

10. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
PSM Belser reported on several minor incidents and one suicide at the LCRA. 

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  February 5, 2014 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of February 4, 2014 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Mary Bergen and Bill Hicks 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
    Public:  Sherri Smith  
 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

The General Manager had just received notice from the American Water Works 
Association that the Casitas Municipal Water District is eligible to receive the AWWA 50-
year Service Award.  This achievement will be recognized at the 2014 AWWA Annual 
Conference in Boston.  The plaque will be mailed to the district after the conference in 
June 2014. 
  

4. Initial Funding Request – Ventura River Watershed Council 
The Committee was informed of initial estimates to fund the position of a Watershed 
Coordinator in future years. There have been various funding levels suggested by 
members of the Council, the variation of possible annual participation cost for Casitas 
have ranged from $5,800 to $12,000.  There is a meeting scheduled in February to 
discuss funding this position.  The Committee will have further discussions regarding the 
Casitas participation and benefits from the Council after the February meeting of the 
Council. 
 

5. State Water Update.  
The General Manager reported on the progress with the Contract Extension negotiations 
between the State Water Contractors (SWC) and the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR). The negotiations are moving toward the discussion on the inclusion of SWC in 
the cost for the Bay Delta Conservation Plan, which may add an additional $2.1M to the 
annual bills paid by Ventura County to DWR.  It is to be noted that eventually this 
negotiation process will require concurrence of the Ventura agencies and signatures on 
the contract amendment. 
 
A key announcement was delivered by DWR concerning a “zero” allocation of State 
Water that is based on recent lack of snow pack and rainfall in northern California.  This 
announcement is raising concerns about water supply reliability throughout California.   

 
6. Casitas Response to California Drought.   

The Committee discussed whether to proceed with a resolution on drought actions.  



Considering that Casitas took actions in 1992 to institute voluntary conservation 
measures and has actively continued to engage the public in the District’s water 
conservation programs, the Committee recommended a heightened level of public 
information via newsletters and broadcast media (newspaper and television). 



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2013-2014 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2013 / 2014 2012 / 2013

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 514 537 499 636 428 454 302 3370 2695

AG Ag 401 433 499 414 383 301 232 2663 2556

C Commercial 101 92 135 69 62 29 21 509 460

DI Interdepartmental 20 5 32 4 21 3 12 97 99

F fire 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0

I Industrial 1 3 1 2 1 3 1 12 15

OT Other 41 34 36 26 29 14 8 188 176

R Residential 286 77 252 135 220 96 147 1213 1158

RS - P Resale Pumped 134 183 197 164 122 89 57 946 308

RS - G Resale Gravity 515 545 620 659 684 447 364 3834 2613

TE Temporary 1 1 30 12 1 1 1 47 8

Total 2014 1910 2301 2,122 1951 1437 1145 0 0 0 0 0 12,880 10,088

Total 2012/2013 1237 1537 2344 1755 1722 952 541 760 845 1053 1427 1933 N/A 16106



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2013/2014

02/06/2014

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011/2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012/2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

July 0.00 0.00 227.71 0.00 227.71

August 0.00 1,334.44 0.00 0.00 1,334.44

September 0.00 51,690.69 864.99 0.00 52,555.68

October 0.00 2,730.00 1,081.24 0.00 3,811.24

November 0.00 12,203.18 535.86 0.00 12,739.04

December 29.89 3,823.82 556.40 0.00 4,410.11

January 0.00 3,698.02 227.78 0.00 3,925.80

Feburary 0.00

March 0.00

April 0.00

May 0.00

June 0.00

Total Cost YTD 29.89 75,480.15 3,493.98 Total Cost YTDTotal Cost TD    79,004.02

Total Project Cost 572.21 341,502.92 29,429.03 Total: Ojai Flow 371,504.16

Prepared by dcollin 02/05/2014 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

02/06/14

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR BK 31331VK96 06/30/2014 $944,110 $944,605 5.650% 04/01/2013 6.40% 144

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 06/14/2019 $1,384,990 $1,339,686 1.625% 10/03/2012 9.08% 1928

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 06/11/2021 $721,266 $676,771 5.625% 01/16/2013 4.59% 2645

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XKTV7 06/13/2014 $950,395 $950,802 4.875% 04/01/2013 6.44% 127

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XLWN1 09/12/2014 $957,868 $958,207 5.250% 04/01/2013 6.49% 216

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XWNB10 06/12/2015 $708,362 $724,864 2.875% 07/01/2010 4.91% 486

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134A4VG60 11/17/2015 $735,174 $755,741 4.750% 07/19/2010 5.12% 641

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3134G34WJ 08/28/2014 $997,876 $998,356 0.375% 04/01/2013 6.77% 202

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $691,225 $697,575 1.375% 03/12/2012 4.73% 999

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,137,823 $1,148,430 5.125% 01/03/2012 7.78% 1361

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EACD90 07/28/2014 $704,809 $709,520 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.81% 172

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 01/13/2022 $209,327 $195,860 2.375% 02/11/2013 1.33% 2857

*TB Federal Natl MTG Assn 31398AYY20 09/16/2014 $705,844 $712,523 3.000% 07/01/2010 4.83% 220

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 07/15/2018 $1,127,825 $1,187,626 1.375% 07/06/2010 8.05% 1599

*TB US Treasury Notes 912828LZ10 11/30/2014 $703,428 $711,235 2.125% 07/01/2010 4.82% 294

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF40 01/15/2020 $1,112,856 $1,180,428 1.375% 07/01/2010 8.00% 2139

*TB US Treasury Bond 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $769,983 $773,247 2.613% 12/13/2013 5.24% 3519

Accrued Interest $90,795

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $14,563,159 $14,756,271 80.39%

*CD cit Salt Lake City UT - CD 12/18/2023 $245,000 $242,347 3.30%

*CD Discover BK Greenwood DE - CD 01/16/2024 $239,000 $234,559 3.20%

*CD GE Capital - CD Draper, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $242,266 3.25%

*CD GE Capital - CD Salt Lake City, UT 09/27/2023 $245,000 $240,267 3.15%

*CD Goldman Sachs  - CD New York, NY 10/30/2023 $224,000 $221,780 3.25%

*CD Toyota Financial Services - CD -Henderson NV 12/20/2023 $245,000 $242,452 3.30%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $1,443,000 $1,423,671 7.76%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $445 $445 0.29% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,174,370 $2,174,370 0.33% Estimated 11.85%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $18,180,974 $18,354,756 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,206,799 $18,264,679

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $14,314,624 $14,556,650

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,204,013 $4,204,013

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $7 $7 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $22,384,994 $22,558,776

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $18,790,605 $19,032,730

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	02-12-14 Agenda.pdf
	01-22-14 min
	Leak Relief
	Bill list
	Patrol Boat Grant
	Quagga.Memo.Rec.Ordinance.Amend.2014
	Ordinance14-01.draft.1.31.2014doc
	QuaggaTempRestrictionInsp&QuarCleanDraft-35Days-1.31.14
	Reserves 2013-2014
	Salary Range Adjustment for Resource Manager
	Publif Affairs Resource Manager 02 07 2014
	Memo - L.C.I.F. Application for Recognition of Exemption
	12.Dec.2013
	CSDA Webinar
	Fin Minutes 01 24 2014
	Budget schedule
	Water Res Minutes 01 28 2014
	Rec Minutes 02 03 2014
	Executive Minutes 02 04 2014
	Consumption 2013 - 2014 (1)
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2013-14
	Investment Report 02-06-2014

